RECEIVED

Jul 09 2025

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Hon. Bentley D. Price, Circuit Judge 2766

Case No. 2022-CP-23-05339
Associated Case No. 2018-CP-23-00695
Appellant Case No:2024-001197

Milton A. Gatlin and Marla S. Gatlin, Plaintiffs,

v.

John M. Hornbeck, III, Custom Castles Roofing and Construction,
Inc., and Custom Castles Construction, LLC, Defendants,

of which Milton A. Gatlin is the Appellant, and John M Hornbeck,
III is the Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Milton A. Gatlin
105 Silver Pine Ct.
Greer, SC 29650
(864) 404-9259
milton@dti.us
Appellant Pro Se

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE JUDGE ERR IN DENYING PLAINTIFF'S "MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OR REOPENING"? PLAINTIFF'S MOTION WAS FILED ON 03/29/2023. ONLY AFTER AN EMAIL SENT BY THE PLAINTIFF ~10 MONTHS LATER ON 01/19/2024, CHECKING ON THE STATUS OF THE MOTION, PLAINTIFF RECEIVED AN EMAIL ON 01/24/2024 ADVISING THE MOTION WAS DENIED. ANOTHER EMAIL WAS SENT 4 MONTHS LATER ON 05/24/2024 ADVISING PLAINTIFF HAD STILL NOT RECEIVED THE ORDER. THE ACTUAL ORDER WAS NOT RECEIVED UNTIL A MONTH LATER ON 06/28/2024 AND DID NOT INCLUDE THE SHORT REASONING REQUESTED OF THE DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY BY THE JUDGE. THE ATTORNEY EMAILED THE JUDGE AND SAID HE DIDN'T KNOW WHAT THE REASONING SHOULD BE AND ASKED THE JUDGE TO ISSUE THE ORDER WITHOUT ANY REASONING. SO, AFTER 15 MONTHS THE DENIAL ORDER WAS ISSUED WITHOUT ANY REASONING. FURTHERMORE, ON FORM 4 THE CHECKBOX WAS CHECKED THAT STATED "DECISION BY THE COURT. THIS ACTION CAME TO TRIAL OR HEARING BEFORE THE COURT. THE ISSUES HAVE BEEN TRIED OR HEARD AND A DECISION RENDERED." (R. p. 1 lines 11-12) A HEARING WAS NEVER HELD BUT HAD BEEN REQUESTED BY THE PLAINTIFF. (R. p. 4 line 6) LOOKING AT HOW THE JUDGE HANDLED DISPOSITION OF THE PLAINTIFF'S "MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OR REOPENING" HE MAY BE IN VIOLATION OF S.C. APP. CT. R. CANON 3 - A JUDGE SHALL PERFORM THE DUTIES OF JUDICIAL OFFICE IMPARTIALLY AND DILIGENTLY.

COMMENTARY:

THE DUTY TO HEAR ALL PROCEEDINGS FAIRLY AND WITH PATIENCE IS NOT INCONSISTENT WITH THE DUTY TO DISPOSE PROMPTLY OF THE BUSINESS OF THE COURT. JUDGES CAN BE EFFICIENT AND BUSINESSLIKE WHILE BEING PATIENT AND DELIBERATE.

2. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY CHANGED THE PLAINTIFF'S DEPOSITION TESTIMONY TO INCLUDE "(CCRC)" (R. p. 281, lines 15-17) (R. p. 221, lines 8-9) WHICH HE USED IN HIS "MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS' MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT" (R. p.38, lines 8- 19) WHICH GAVE THE DEFENDANTS AN ADVANTAGE?
3. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY REFERRED TO THE "CONTRACT" FAVORABLY FOR THE DEFENDANTS, KNOWING THE "CONTRACT" HAD BEEN PROVEN IN EARLIER HEARINGS TO BE FRAUDULENT, DECEIVING AND ILLEGAL? (R. pp. 43-44)

DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY LIED THROUGHOUT HIS "MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS' MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT" IN ORDER TO GIVE THE DEFENDANT A DISHONEST ADVANTAGE? (R. pp.37-40)

5. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY STATED, BY LAW "PLAINTIFFS PREVENTED CCRC FROM PERFORMING IT'S STATUTORY RIGHT TO CURE" KNOWING THE COURT AND RESIDENTIAL BUILDING COMMISSION HAD RULED AGAINST THAT ARGUMENT? (CCRC WAS NOT LICENSED)

6. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY STATED "I. ALL TORT ACTIONS ARE BARRED BY THE ECONOMIC LOSS RULE" IS A LIE. THE SOUTH CAROLINA SUPREME COURT IN 1989 RECOGNIZED EXCEPTIONS TO THE ECONOMIC LOSS RULE IN THE RESIDENTIAL HOMEBUILDING CONTEXT.?
7. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER THE FACT THE ATTORNEY SERVED HIS "MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS' MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT" TO THE APPELLANT 6 DAYS BEFORE THE HEARING REDUCING THE APPELLANT'S TIME TO RESPOND BY 40%?
8. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER THE NEW EVIDENCE FROM THE RESIDENTIALBUILDING COMMISSION PLACING THE TOTAL LIABILITY ON MR. HORNBECK III? (R. p. 5, lines 13-26)
9. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER THE FACT THAT CUSTOM CASTLES ROOFING AND CONSTRUCTION WAS NOT LICENSED AND LISTED AND THEREFORE IT WAS ILLEGAL FOR CCRC TO PROPOSE TO DO THE ROOFING AND SIDING WORK MUCH LESS ACTUALLY PERFORM WORK ON THE SITE? (R. p. 6, lines 10-15)
10. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER IT MATERIAL THAT CCRC DID NOT INSTALL THE SYSTEMS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2015 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CODE OR THE MANUFACTURERS INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS WHICH CAUSED THE MANUFACTURERS TO VOID THEIR WARRANTIES? (R. pp. 58-143)

11. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER THE ECONOMIC LOSS DUE TO
DEVALUATION OF THE APPELLANTS' HOME AND THE HUGE COST PAID
BY THE APPELLANTS FOR REPAIRS TO AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK?

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT

Appellant Milton A. Gatlin requests oral argument as he believes it can significantly aid in the decisional process in this case.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The case stems from a hail storm in the spring of 2017 that damaged the roof and exterior aluminum siding of the appellant's residence. On July 31, 2017 the appellants signed a contract with Custom Castles Roofing and Construction, Inc. (Hereinafter referred to as CCRC) for replacing the roofing on the house and shed. Later after confirming CCRC could replace the aluminum siding, which is no longer available, with a 4" exposure lapped Hardi Plank, the trade name for a fiber cement siding board, for the appellant's Allstate insurance company's estimate, a verbal agreement was made for replacing the siding on the house with 4" exposure, lapped Hardi Plank. Had CCRC not been able to replace the siding for Allstate's estimate then a lower price solution like vinyl siding would need to have been priced.

The roofing subcontractor starting work around the middle of September, 2017 and finished about the end of September, 2017. The siding contractor started work about the second week in September, 2017 and finished around the end of September, 2017.

During installation of the roof the roofer knocked the cap off of the furnace vent but didn't let anyone know. Soon afterwards the appellant noticed the missing cap and requested a new one be installed which the roofer did a few weeks later. When appellant inspected the roof cap installation it was found to be too small for the Type B double wall vent and was installed gooped up with silicone caulking in an effort to make it fit. Appellant discussed the situation with the Greenville County Mechanical inspector who suggested appellant not wait for CCRC to replace the cap but appellant should replace it immediately due to the life safety concerns of fire and carbon monoxide poisoning. The appellant replaced the vent cap himself as recommended.

During the installation of the siding the contractor knocked two large front porch lights off of the exterior wall and accidentally broke a water line located in the kitchen exterior wall. The water leak was repaired by the siding contractor but the hole made in the sheathing was not repaired. It was covered with an old shingle. In addition, the kitchen ceiling had considerable damage caused by the water leak. The ceiling damage was shown to Mr. Hornbeck, III, owner of CCRC, but was never repaired. The two large front porch lights, one with a broken globe were never reinstalled and had to be remounted by the appellant. The broken globe was never replaced.

Before the roofing was finished appellant was asked to pay for the roof work. Appellant asked for an invoice so it could be submitted to Allstate Insurance Co. for payment. Appellant was told it wasn't available but it would be provided very soon so appellant paid 100% of the roofing cost without getting an invoice to turn in. Also, the roofer was not finished because he ran out of shingles.

The siding invoice was not presented until after appellant had inspected both the siding and roofing and found both systems to be incomplete and unacceptable.

When appellate was on a lower roof inspecting the siding, appellant began noticing mistakes in the roof installation. A complete inspection was then done on both systems. As a note, appellant is qualified to make the inspections based on appellant's background. Appellant has been a licensed engineer in South Carolina for 50 years. Before retirement appellant held an unlimited general contractor's license, an unlimited mechanical contractor's license and an unlimited electrical contractor's license in South Carolina. In addition, appellant also held engineering licenses in North Carolina, Georgia, Kentucky and Alabama and construction licenses in North Carolina, Georgia and Dade County, Florida and was a certified project management professional.

The findings of these inspections are listed below.

The following results are due to the faulty construction, lack of supervision, followup and inspection by CCRC.

Gaf, the roofing manufacturer, would not honor their warranty.

James Hardie company, the siding manufacturer, would not honor their warranty.

After CCRC said they had completed the roof and had been paid the full amount, plaintiffs had continuing leaks in two bathrooms, a bedroom, the dining room and den. Due to the incorrect installation strong winds would eventually begin to blow shingles off the roof. After CCRC said they had completed the siding, plaintiffs had two continuing interior leaks around the windows in a bedroom.

Due to the damage to the exterior sheathing during the siding being installed wrong,

moisture and air infiltration would begin reducing energy efficiency, by allowing increased cold/hot air and moisture into the home, reduce the wall's insulation value, set up conditions for mold and mildew growth and allow for insect infestations.

Also, by not coating the sawed edges of the siding, delamination of the siding would eventually begin. Also, the home's curb appeal was reduced

By CCRC not repairing and reinstalling the two exterior lights knocked off the wall by the siding installers, not reinstalling the downspouts removed by the siding installers, by not reinstalling the window shutters removed by the siding installers, by not installing siding with the correct exposure, by leaving a length of siding removed exposing the sheathing, by installing shingles that curved over the eave and rake, by not installing ridge vents, by not installing drip edge in some areas. In addition, CCRC installed an undersized furnace vent cap filled with caulking that caused a backpressure on the furnace. That backpressure would reduce the furnace's life by causing moisture accumulation and rusting of the furnace due to incomplete combustion. The backpressure would cause a life safety issue by increasing the chance of carbon monoxide escaping from the furnace and entering the homes' bedrooms through the attic. Carbon monoxide tests have shown it easily penetrates sheetrock, even painted sheetrock because carbon monoxide molecules are 1,000 times smaller than the pores in sheetrock and paint barely makes any difference. It's estimated the above items could devalue the plaintiffs' home by as much as 30%, or approximately \$100,000.00. Also, code violations could affect insurance claims resulting in thousands of dollars out of the plaintiffs' pocket. (Exhibit F, Plaintiff Losses, Exhibit G, Uncomplete Items, Exhibit H, Siding Installation Defects, Exhibit I, Roofing Installation Defects)

After custom castles roofing and construction were notified of the deficiencies, appellant starting seeking corrective actions to the work. The negotiations failed and appellant filed a complaint in the Greenville County Court of Common Pleas, Thirteenth Judicial Circuit on Feb. 07, 2018. (Case # 2018cp2300695)

Respondent filled a “Motion and Motion to Dismiss” on May 11, 2018. Respondent's “Motion and Motion to Dismiss” **was denied** June 27, 2018.

Respondent filed “Notice of Motion and Motion for Summary Judgment” on Feb. 11, 2019. Respondents “Notice of Motion and Motion for Summary Judgment” **was denied** on April 26, 2019.

Respondent filed a “Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss or For Stay of Proceedings” on May 3, 2019. Respondents “Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss or For Stay of Proceedings” **was denied** on May 21, 2019.

Respondent filed a “Notice of Motion and Motion to Reconsider” on May 24, 2019. Respondent's “Notice of Motion and Motion to Reconsider” **was denied** on June 17, 2019.

Respondent filed an “Appeal/Notice of Appeal” to the Court of Appeals on June 20, 2019. Respondents “Appeal/Notice of Appeal” **was dismissed** on July 19, 2019.

Court's order granting removal of case from the General Docket pursuant to SCRCRCP Rule 40(j) was filed on Sept. 20, 2021(appellant had requested a continuance for 6 weeks of Radiation and Chemo treatment for cancer but was denied. Court earlier approved a continuance for appellant's attorney to go on vacation in France. Cancer was cured. Not sure if vacation in France turned out as good.)

Case was restored per Rule 40j on Sept. 26, 2022 (new case number was assigned, 2022CP2305339).

Respondent filed a “Motion for Summary Judgement” Nov 16, 2022.

Respondent filed a “Memorandum In Support Of Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment” on Feb. 13, 2023 (appellant copied on Feb 14, 2023).

Appellant filed a “Memo In Opposition” on Feb. 21, 2023

Summary judgement hearing was held on Feb. 22, 2023

Summary judgement was granted Mar. 20, 2023

Appellant filed a “Motion for Reconsideration or Reopening” **Mar. 29, 2023**. Plaintiff’s “Motion for Reconsideration or Reopening” was denied on **June 28, 2024**.

The original case 2018CP-23-00695 was stricken from the docket pursuant to Rule 40(j) of the South Carolina Rules Of Civil Procedure in September 2021. The current case 2022-CP-23-05339 placed the case back on the docket in September 2022. There is no difference between the cases other than the number. The facts and the evidence are the same.

Defendants’ first “Summary Judgement Motion”, which was submitted after plaintiffs’ amended complaint, under the old case number, was denied based on finding that genuine issues of material fact remain in dispute. However, defendants second “Summary Judgement Motion” was granted under the new case number.

Rule 56 (c) states “the motion shall be served at least 10 days before the time fixed for the hearing”. It doesn’t say part of the motion shall be filed at least 10 days before the time fixed for the hearing. Part of the defendants’ motion was filed in November 2022, however the “Memorandum in Support of Defendants Motion for Summary Judgment” was not filed until

February 13, 2023 (less than 10 days before the time fixed for the hearing and the days included a federal holiday. With that in mind, please consider the fact the “Memorandum in Support of Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment” was 100% of the defendants’ attorneys’ argument at the sj hearing and the reduced time (6 days) did not allow pro se plaintiffs time to sufficiently prepare.

New information was discovered that will have a major impact on the case. The SC Residential Builders Commission informed plaintiff on March 17, 2023 that the person holding the residential builders license is responsible and liable for any and all work a company is performing under that person’s residential builders license. Therefore, according to the residential builders commission, Mr. John M. Hornbeck III is responsible and liable for the roofing and siding replacement at plaintiffs’ home, regardless of whether CCRC is listed under Mr. Hornbeck’s license or not. The fact Mr. Hornbeck obtained the roofing permit in his name and not CCRC, further solidifies his responsibility and liability. (Just for information Mr. Hornbeck never obtained a permit for replacing the roof on the house two doors down from plaintiff.)

STANDARD OF REVIEW

South Carolina Code of Laws Unannotated, Title 14 – Courts, CHAPTER 8, Court of Appeals

ARTICLE III

Jurisdiction, Duties and Procedure

SECTION 14-8-200. Jurisdiction of Court; limitations.

(a) Except as limited by subsection (b) and Section 14-8-260, the court has jurisdiction over any case in which an appeal is taken from an order, judgment, or decree of the circuit court, family

court, a final decision of an agency, a final decision of an administrative law judge, or the final decision of the Workers' Compensation Commission. This jurisdiction is appellate only, and the court shall apply the same scope of review that the Supreme Court would apply in a similar case. The court has the same authority to issue writs of supersedeas, grant stays, and grant petitions for bail as the Supreme Court would have in a similar case. The court, to the extent the Supreme Court may by rule provide for it to do so, has jurisdiction to entertain petitions for writs of certiorari in post-conviction relief matters pursuant to Section 17-27-100.

(b) Jurisdiction of the court does not extend to appeals of the following, the appeal from which lies of right directly to the Supreme Court:

(1) a final judgment from the circuit court which includes a sentence of death;

(2) a final decision of the Public Service Commission setting public utility rates pursuant to Title 58;

(3) a final judgment involving a challenge on state or federal grounds, to the constitutionality of a state law or county or municipal ordinance where the principal issue is one of the constitutionality of the law or ordinance; however, in a case where the Supreme Court finds that the constitutional question raised is not a significant one, the Supreme Court may transfer the case to the court for final judgment;

(4) a final judgment from the circuit court involving the authorization, issuance, or proposed issuance of general obligation debt, revenue, institutional, industrial, or hospital bonds of the State, its agencies, political subdivisions, public service districts, counties, and municipalities, or any other indebtedness authorized by Article X of the Constitution of this State;

(5) a final judgment from the circuit court pertaining to elections and election procedure;

(6) an order limiting an investigation by a state grand jury pursuant to Section 14-7-1630; and

(7) an order of the family court relating to an abortion by a minor pursuant to Section 44-41-33.

For this Summary Judgement order the “de novo” standard of review should be selected. Under this standard, appellate courts decide for themselves what the law says and what the decision of law should be, without deferring to the trial court’s decision.

FACTS
DISCUSSION OF ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANTS' MOTION
FOR SUMMARY JUDGEMENT

a. Breach of Contract

Defendants' Attorney argues: "Plaintiff's claim of Breach of Contract against one or more of Defendants fails for three reasons: (1) Plaintiff Breached the Contract first; (2) Plaintiff's anticipatory breach of the Contract excused further performance of Defendants; and (3) Plaintiff prevented CCRC from performing its duties under the contract."(Order, p. 2, line 7-10)

Attorney's argument fails for the following reasons:

1. Defendants Breached the Contract first by performing illegal acts. Defendant Custom Castles Roofing and Construction, Inc. was not licensed/listed in accordance with SC Code of Laws Title 40 Article 1 Section 40-59-30 License requirement, enforcement of contracts, restraining orders; to perform the roofing and siding replacements on Plaintiffs' home. Therefore from the first day CCRC was on the Plaintiffs' property they were performing illegal acts.
2. Attorney stated "Mr. Gatlin testified in his deposition that he has never paid CCRC in full for the siding." Attorney left out the fact the siding was not complete and never has been completed. (Order, p. 2, line 28-29)
3. Attorney stated "Furthermore,Plaintiff did not endorse over the check from its insurance company to CCRC and therefore breached its Contract with CCRC." (Order, p.2, line 29, p, 3, line 1) The attorney made that statement without knowing whether it was true or false, which amounts to Attorney misconduct for false or misleading statements. The check referred to was not issued by Plaintiffs' Insurance Company until ~3 weeks after CCRC submitted the invoice for the remaing contract amount.(Exhibit O, Payments) The amount paid was a partial payment, from Plaintiffs' personal funds, with the amount remaining being retainage for uncompleted work. The retainage

was never paid due to CCRC never completing the work and Defendant Hornbeck's reneging on correcting work he promised to correct, just as soon as he received Plaintiffs' personal funds check.

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