RECEIVED

Mar 27 2025

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas The Honorable Bently D. Price, Circuit Court Judge

Appellant Case No. 2024-001197
Civil Action Case No. 2022-CP-23-05339

John M. Hornbeck, IIIRespondent

v.

Milton A. Gatlin Appellant

INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Respectfully submitted,

s/ Wendell L. Hawkins

Wendell L. Hawkins (S.C. Bar #: 13583)

Wendell L. Hawkins, PA

9 Buena Vista Way, Ste B. Greenville, SC 29615

(864) 848-9370 (Ph) (864) 243-8137 (Fax)

wlh@wlhawkinslawfirm.com

Attorneys for Respondents

March 27th, 2025
Greenville, South Carolina

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

issue on appeal should be dismissed on that defect alone. *E.g.*, First Sav. Bank v. McLean, 314 S.C. 361, 363, 444 S.E.2d 513, 514 (1994) (stating the failure to provide arguments or supporting authority for an issue on appeal is deemed an abandonment of the issue); Rouvet v. Rouvet, 388 S.C. 301, 310, 696 S.E.2d 204, 208 (Ct. App. 2010) (“[L]ack of familiarity with legal proceedings is not an acceptable excuse and the court will hold a layman to the same standard as an attorney.”). A conclusory argument of an issue by appellant amounts to an abandonment of the issue. State v. Black, 319 S.C. 515, 462 S.E.2d 311, rehearing denied (Ct. App. 1995). A broad general statement of issues made by an appellant may be disregarded by the appellate court pursuant to Rule 207(b)(1)(B), SCACR. Sullivan Co., Inc. v. New Swirl, Inc., 313 S.C. 34, 437 S.E.2d 30 (1993).

Because the Appellant has failed to identify any particular error of law of the trial court, makes no argument whatsoever, and provides not supporting authority, this issue on appeal should be disregarded by the Court.

II. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THAT DEFENDANT’S ATTORNEY CHANGED THE PLAINTIFF’S DEPOSITION TESTIMONY WHICH HE USED THROUGHOUT HIS “MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT” IN ORDER TO GIVE DEFENDANT A DISHONEST ADVANTAGE.”

Appellant points to no particular reference or source to identify any particular misrepresentations made by Respondent’s counsel regarding Appellant’s deposition testimony either in oral argument or in Appellant’s Memorandum in Opposition of Summary Judgment (R. pp. ____). More importantly, there is also no evidence submitted by Appellant wherein Appellant objected to any alleged misrepresentations regarding Plaintiff’s deposition testimony. This issue on appeal is not supported by any allegation of Appellant that the court committed an error of law much less any particular statutory or common law violated. In fact, the Appellant makes no

argument whatsoever or supporting authority and this issue on appeal should be dismissed on that defect alone. *E.g.*, First Sav. Bank v. McLean, 314 S.C. 361, 363, 444 S.E.2d 513, 514 (1994) (stating the failure to provide arguments or supporting authority for an issue on appeal is deemed an abandonment of the issue); Rouvet v. Rouvet, 388 S.C. 301, 310, 696 S.E.2d 204, 208 (Ct. App. 2010) (“[L]ack of familiarity with legal proceedings is not an acceptable excuse and the court will hold a layman to the same standard as an attorney.”) “In order for an issue to be preserved for appellate review, it must have been raised to and ruled upon by the trial judge. Issues not raised and ruled upon in the trial court will not be considered on appeal”. State v. Dunbar, 356 S.C. 138, 142, 587 S.E.2d 691, 693–94 (2003) citing, Humbert v. State, 345 S.C. 332, 548 S.E.2d 862 (2001). “An issue that was not preserved for review should not be addressed by the Court of Appeals, and the court's opinion should be vacated to the extent it addressed an issue that was not preserved.” *Id.* at 694. citing , Hendrix v. Eastern Distribution, Inc., 320 S.C. 218, 464 S.E.2d 112 (1995). This issue on appeal is not supported by any allegation of Appellant that the court committed an error of law much less any particular statutory or common law that it asserts the court violated. A conclusory argument of an issue by appellant amounts to an abandonment of the issue. State v. Black , 319 S.C. 515, 462 S.E.2d 311, rehearing denied (Ct. App. 1995). A broad general statement of issues made by an appellant may be disregarded by the appellate court pursuant to Rule 207(b)(1)(B), SCACR. Sullivan Co., Inc. v. New Swirl, Inc. , 313 S.C. 34, 437 S.E.2d 30(1993).

Secondly, this issue was not raised in the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment. New arguments are not to be considered on a motion for reconsideration. In Commercial Credit Loans, Inc. v. Riddle, 334 S.C. 176, 186, 512 S.E.2d 123, 129 (Ct App 1999), the court wrote, “[f]urther, because the transcript of the proceedings below is omitted from the record, it appears

the first time Commercial Credit made this argument was in its Rule 59(e) motion for reconsideration. Accordingly, this issue is not properly preserved for our review.” Patterson v. Reid, 318 S.C. 183, 185, 456 S.E.2d 436, 437 (Ct.App.1995) (party cannot use a motion to reconsider, alter, or amend a judgment to present an issue that could have been raised prior to the judgment but was not); *see also* Crestwood Golf Club, Inc. v. Potter, 328 S.C. 201, 493 S.E.2d 826 (1997) (appellant has the burden of presenting a sufficient record to allow review). To preserve an issue for appellate review, the issue cannot be raised for the first time on appeal, but must have been raised to and ruled upon by the trial court. Floyd v. Floyd, 365 S.C. 56, 73, 615 S.E.2d 465, 474 (Ct.App.2005). “Error preservation requirements are intended ‘to enable the lower court to rule properly after it has considered all relevant facts, law, and arguments.’” Staubes v. City of Folly Beach, 339 S.C. 406, 412, 529 S.E.2d 543, 546 (2000) (quoting I’On, L.L.C. v. Town of Mt. Pleasant, 338 S.C. 406, 422, 526 S.E.2d 716, 724 (2000)).

Because the Appellant has failed to identify any particular error of law of the trial court, never advanced an argument on this issue, never provided any supporting authority, and never raised this issue in the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment, this issue on appeal should be disregarded by the Court.

III. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT’S ATTORNEY REFERRED TO THE “CONTRACT” FAVORABLY FOR THE DEFENDANTS KNOWING THE “CONTRACT” WAS PROVEN TO BE FRAUDULENT, DECIEVING AND ILLEGAL?”

This issue on appeal is not supported by reference to any transcript or document which is a part of the Record on Appeal. This issue on appeal is further based on the conclusory statement that the Contract which was the subject of the case was proven to be fraudulent, deceiving and illegal for which there is no basis. Appellant also never articulates any an error of

law committed by the trial court. This issue on appeal is not supported by any allegation of Appellant that the court committed an error of law much less any particular statutory or common law violated. In fact, the Appellant makes no argument whatsoever or supporting authority and this issue on appeal should be dismissed on that defect alone. *E.g.*, First Sav. Bank v. McLean, 314 S.C. 361, 363, 444 S.E.2d 513, 514 (1994) (stating the failure to provide arguments or supporting authority for an issue on appeal is deemed an abandonment of the issue); Rouvet v. Rouvet, 388 S.C. 301, 310, 696 S.E.2d 204, 208 (Ct. App. 2010) (“[L]ack of familiarity with legal proceedings is not an acceptable excuse and the court will hold a layman to the same standard as an attorney.”) A conclusory argument of an issue by appellant amounts to an abandonment of the issue. State v. Black, 319 S.C. 515, 462 S.E.2d 311, rehearing denied (Ct. App. 1995). A broad general statement of issues made by an appellant may be disregarded by the appellate court pursuant to Rule 207(b)(1)(B), SCACR. Sullivan Co., Inc. v. New Swirl, Inc., 313 S.C. 34, 437 S.E.2d 30(1993). Secondly, this issue was not raised in the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment. New arguments are not to be considered on a motion for reconsideration. In Commercial Credit Loans, Inc. v. Riddle, 334 S.C. 176, 186, 512 S.E.2d 123, 129 (Ct App 1999), the court wrote, “[f]urther, because the transcript of the proceedings below is omitted from the record, it appears the first time Commercial Credit made this argument was in its Rule 59(e) motion for reconsideration. Accordingly, this issue is not properly preserved for our review.” Patterson v. Reid, 318 S.C. 183, 185, 456 S.E.2d 436, 437 (Ct.App.1995) (party cannot use a motion to reconsider, alter, or amend a judgment to present an issue that could have been raised prior to the judgment but was not); *see also* Crestwood Golf Club, Inc. v. Potter, 328 S.C. 201, 493 S.E.2d 826 (1997) (appellant has the burden of presenting a sufficient record to allow review). To preserve an issue for appellate review, the issue cannot be raised for the first

time on appeal, but must have been raised to and ruled upon by the trial court. Floyd v. Floyd, 365 S.C. 56, 73, 615 S.E.2d 465, 474 (Ct.App.2005). “Error preservation requirements are intended ‘to enable the lower court to rule properly after it has considered all relevant facts, law, and arguments.’ ” Staubes v. City of Folly Beach, 339 S.C. 406, 412, 529 S.E.2d 543, 546 (2000) (quoting I’On, L.L.C. v. Town of Mt. Pleasant, 338 S.C. 406, 422, 526 S.E.2d 716, 724 (2000)).

Because the Appellant has failed to identify any particular error of law of the trial court, never advanced an argument on this issue, never provided any supporting authority, and never raised this issue in the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment, this issue on appeal should be disregarded by the Court.

IV. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT’S ATTORNEY LIED THROUGHOUT HIS “MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGEMENT” IN ORDER TO GIVE THE DEFENDANT A DISHONEST ADVANTAGE ?”

This issue on appeal is not supported by reference to any transcript or document which is a part of the Record on Appeal. This issue on appeal is further based on the conclusory statement that the Respondent’s attorney lied about something (or multiple things) in his Memorandum in Support of the Motion for Summary Judgment. The Appellant does not even identify what the Respondent’s attorney lied about. Appellant also never articulates any an error of law committed by the trial court. This issue on appeal is not supported by any allegation of Appellant that the court committed an error of law much less any particular statutory or common law violated. A conclusory argument of an issue by appellant amounts to an abandonment of the issue. State v. Black , 319 S.C. 515, 462 S.E.2d 311, rehearing denied (Ct. App. 1995). A broad general statement of issues made by an appellant may be disregarded by the appellate court pursuant to Rule 207(b)(1)(B), SCACR. Sullivan Co., Inc. v. New Swirl, Inc. , 313 S.C. 34, 437

S.E.2d 30(1993). In fact, the Appellant makes no argument whatsoever or supporting authority and this issue on appeal should be dismissed on that defect alone. *E.g.*, First Sav. Bank v. McLean, 314 S.C. 361, 363, 444 S.E.2d 513, 514 (1994) (stating the failure to provide arguments or supporting authority for an issue on appeal is deemed an abandonment of the issue); Rouvet v. Rouvet, 388 S.C. 301, 310, 696 S.E.2d 204, 208 (Ct. App. 2010) (“[L]ack of familiarity with legal proceedings is not an acceptable excuse and the court will hold a layman to the same standard as an attorney.”)

Because the Appellant has failed to identify any particular error of law of the trial court, this issue on appeal should be disregarded by the Court.

Secondly, this issue was not raised in the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment. New arguments are not to be considered on a motion for reconsideration. In Commercial Credit Loans, Inc. v. Riddle, 334 S.C. 176, 186, 512 S.E.2d 123, 129 (Ct App 1999), the court wrote, “[f]urther, because the transcript of the proceedings below is omitted from the record, it appears the first time Commercial Credit made this argument was in its Rule 59(e) motion for reconsideration. Accordingly, this issue is not properly preserved for our review.” Patterson v. Reid, 318 S.C. 183, 185, 456 S.E.2d 436, 437 (Ct.App.1995) (party cannot use a motion to reconsider, alter, or amend a judgment to present an issue that could have been raised prior to the judgment but was not); *see also* Crestwood Golf Club, Inc. v. Potter, 328 S.C. 201, 493 S.E.2d 826 (1997) (appellant has the burden of presenting a sufficient record to allow review). To preserve an issue for appellate review, the issue cannot be raised for the first time on appeal, but must have been raised to and ruled upon by the trial court. Floyd v. Floyd, 365 S.C. 56, 73, 615 S.E.2d 465, 474 (Ct.App.2005). “Error preservation requirements are intended ‘to enable the lower court to rule properly after it has considered all relevant facts, law, and arguments.’

” Staubes v. City of Folly Beach, 339 S.C. 406, 412, 529 S.E.2d 543, 546 (2000) (quoting I’On, L.L.C. v. Town of Mt. Pleasant, 338 S.C. 406, 422, 526 S.E.2d 716, 724 (2000)).

Because the Appellant has failed to identify any particular error of law of the trial court, never advanced an argument on this issue, never provided any supporting authority, and never raised this issue in the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment, this issue on appeal should be disregarded by the Court.

V. DID THE JUDGE NOT CONSIDER AS MATERIAL THE FACT THE DEFENDANT’S ATTORNEY STATED, BY LAW “PLAINTIFFS PREVENTED CCRC FROM PERFORMING IT’S STATUTORY RIGHT TO CURE” KNOWING THE COURT AND RESIDENTIAL BUILDING COMMISSION HAD RULED AGAINST THAT ARGUMENT ?”

Once again, this issue on appeal is not supported by any allegation of Appellant that the court committed an error of law much less any evidence in the Record on Appeal of a particular prior court ruling that the Appellant did not prevent Respondent from performing its right to cure. Furthermore, notwithstanding the fact that the Residential Building Commission cannot make judicial rulings, Appellant has submitted nothing in the Record on Appeal regarding a ruling by the Residential Building Commission. A conclusory argument of an issue by appellant amounts to an abandonment of the issue. State v. Black, 319 S.C. 515, 462 S.E.2d 311, rehearing denied (Ct. App. 1995). A broad general statement of issues made by an appellant may be disregarded by the appellate court pursuant to Rule 207(b)(1)(B), SCACR. Sullivan Co., Inc. v. New Swirl, Inc., 313 S.C. 34, 437 S.E.2d 30(1993). In fact, the Appellant makes no argument whatsoever or supporting authority and this issue on appeal should be dismissed on that defect alone. *E.g.*, First Sav. Bank v. McLean, 314 S.C. 361, 363, 444 S.E.2d 513, 514 (1994) (stating the failure to provide arguments or supporting authority for an issue on appeal is

deemed an abandonment of the issue); Rouvet v. Rouvet, 388 S.C. 301, 310, 696 S.E.2d 204, 208 (Ct. App. 2010) (“[L]ack of familiarity with legal proceedings is not an acceptable excuse and the court will hold a layman to the same standard as an attorney.”)

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